3:17: 00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

Thonpson

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
FOURTH SPECI AL SESSI ON
June 6, 2016

nmeeting to order at 3:17 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

3:17 p.m

called the House Finance Committee
Mar k Neunman, Co-Chair
St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Bryce Edgnon
Les Gara
Lynn Gattis

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Cat hy Munoz
Lance Pruitt
Tamm e W1 son

Jane Pierson, Staff, Representative Steve Thonpson; David
Teal , Director, Legi sl ative Fi nance Di vi si on;
Representati ve Andy Josephson; Representati ve Lora

Rei nbol d; Representative Gabrielle LeDoux.
SUMVARY

HB 245 PERM FUND: DEPGCSI TS; DI VI DEND; EARNI NGS

HB 245 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for

further consideration.
Co- Chair Thonpson revi ewed the neeting agenda.

#hb245

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



HOUSE BI LL NO. 245

"An Act relating to the Alaska permanent fund;
relating to appropriations to the dividend fund;
relating to incone of the Al aska permanent fund;
relating to the earnings reserve account; relating to
the Al aska permanent fund dividend; naking conformng
amendnents; and providing for an effective date."

3:17:48 PM

Co-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 245, Wor k Draft 29- GH2859\ L
(Wal | ace/ Martin, 6/6/16). There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so order ed.

Co-Chair Thonpson indicated that David Teal, director of
the Legislative Finance Division (LFD), would be providing
an anal ysi s.

JANE Pl ERSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE STEVE THOWSON, read
from a docunent titled "Corrected HB 245 Explanation of
Changes version | to version L" (copy on file):

HB 245 Expl anati on of Changes version | to version L

Page 1, Lines 6-7 TITLE CHANCE regarding unrestricted
state revenues avail able for appropriation.

Deleted Section 4 from wversion |[|. This section
conforms to not getting rid of the Amerada Hess case
settlement noney being directed to the Al aska capita
i ncome fund.

Page 4, Lines 25-28. States that the Anerada Hess
noney will not be accounted for in the anmount of noney
avai | abl e for distribution.

Page 4, Line 30 and line 31 the word "cal cul ated"” was
renoved, since this is an anmpunt in the fund, not a
cal cul ati on.

Page 5, Line 7 renoves "adjusted for inflation" from
the revenue |imt threshold. Automatic inflationary
increases wll certainly reduce the inpact of the
l[imt and mght make the limt as irrelevant as the
exi sting constitutional spending limt.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Page 5, Line 14 renoves |anguage regarding inflation

pr oofi ng.

Page 6, Line 5 - 15 A new section is added AS
37.13.148 - Appropriation of Revenue. This new section
creates a spending rule that states, if the anount

available for appropriation in the preceding fiscal
year is greater than the anount appropriated, the
| egi sl ature may appropriate the excess as foll ows:

(1) 50 percent to the Permanent Fund

(2) 50 percent to the CBR

Page 9, Line 13 - AS 37.14.145(d) is elimnated from
the repealers. This has to do with the Anmerada Hess
settl enment noney.

Page 9 - Section 24 was renoved in version L. This
allows for transfer of the managenent of the CBR from
DOR to the Permanent Fund to happen this year and not
in 2017.

3:21: 53 PM

Representative Gara asked for detail on two changes related
to inflation proofing on page 5.

Ms. Pierson replied that page 5, I|ine 7 renoved the
| anguage "adjusted for inflation" related to the revenue
l[imt. The change would hold the limt to $1.2 billion
wi thout the ability to rise with inflation. Inflationary
i ncreases may nmake the revenue |imt irrelevant.

Co-Chair Thonpson asked which bill version the page
references (provided by M. Pierson) related to. M.
Pi erson answered the changes appeared in the "L" version of
the bill.

Representative Gara spoke to the revenue limt of $1.2
billion. He surmsed the conbination of oil revenue and
Percent of Market Value (POW) earnings remained at a flat
$4 billion. He asked for the accuracy of his statenents. He
asked for wverification the $1.2 billion wuld not be
adj usted for inflation.

Ms. Pierson responded in the affirmative. She deferred the
guestion to LFD for further detail. She nmentioned a handout

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



in menbers' packets provided by the division [titled "PFPA
Payout/ Revenue Split" (copy on file)].

3:23:41 PM

Representative Gara asked if the other inflation proofing
reference on page 5 also related to the sanme issue. M
Pi erson answered in the affirmative.

Representative Gara pointed to page 6 of the |egislation
that included a new provision on 50 percent to the
Per manent Fund and 50 percent to the Constitutional Budget
Reserve (CBR). He asked for detail.

Ms. Pierson answered that if the anount available for
appropriation in the preceding fiscal year was greater than
the anount appropriated, the legislature nmay appropriate
the excess as follows: 1) 50 percent to the Pernmanent Fund;
and 2) 50 percent to the CBR She noted nenbers' packets
included an LFD chart describing the savings rule [titled
"Savings Rule" (copy on file)].

Vice-Chair Saddler noted that there appeared to be a
m sal i gnment of pages in the docunents under discussion.
Ms. Pierson responded that any deleted material came out of
the "I" version of the legislation. She believed the other
i nformati on should align.

3:25:47 PM
Represent ati ve Kawasaki pointed to page 6, lines 5 through
15 and believed the change actually applied to lines 8

through 18. He discussed that under the legislation the
appropriation of revenue would be split, dividing half to
the Permanent Fund and half to the CBR He referred to the
| anguage "the legislature nmay appropriate” and wondered if
it meant the legislature could put the nobney into an
ear ni ngs reserve account.

Ms. Pierson replied that the legislature could always
appropriate as it saw fit.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted M. Teal had joined the neeting.
Representative Gara wondered if the two provisions never

let state appropriations get adjusted for inflation. He
referred to new Section 37.13.148 on page 6. He observed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



the section was not binding as it included the | anguage
"the legislature nmay appropriate”; however, i f t he
| egislature followed the section, appropriations would not
be adjusted for inflation. He surmsed if the cost of
inflation for the sane nunber of services nmade the cost
increase, they would be able to adjust for the increase
with the revenue. He surmised they would not "just keep
cutting."

DAVI D TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEQ SLATIVE FINANCE DI VI SION, agreed
that the change would flatten the expenditure line (there
was a dollar-for-dollar reduction of the payout from the
Per manent Fund earnings reserve account). He noted there
were [LFD] graphs available to provide further detail. He
clarified the line was flat only in reference to oi
production. He expounded if there was other revenue from
any source other than production tax and royalties, the
l[ine would not remain flat. He added the revenue was all
spendabl e.

3:28:58 PM

Representative Gara wondered if the state would still be
limted to the prior year's spending level if it brought in
nore revenue (from Permanent Fund earnings and oi
conbined) than it had spent the preceding year. He surm sed
the situation could go on in perpetuity and could result in
falling behind inflation if those were the two revenue
sour ces.

M. Teal suggested reviewi ng the sectional analysis before
he answered questi ons.

3:30: 51 PM

Ms. Pierson read the sectional analysis (copy on file):

Section 1. Legislative intent that the |Ilegislature
reevaluate the use of the earnings of the Pernmanent
Fund in three years

Section 2: Language requiring the Alaska Pernanent

Fund Corporation to adopt regulations simlar to the
State’s procurenent code

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Section 3: Adds the Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation
to the list of those state agencies that are exenpt
fromthe State’s procurenent code

Section 4: Transfers the managenent and investnent of
the Constitutional Budget Reserve from the Departnent
of Revenue to the Al aska Permanent Fund Cor poration

Section 5: Requires the Alaska Permanent Fund
Corporation to prepare an annual report on the bal ance
and returns of the Constitutional Budget Reserve fund

Section 6: Dedicated deposits of royalties to the
Permanent Fund are reduced from the current 25/50
split on old/ new | eases to the constitutional m ninmm
of 25 percent

Section 7: Requires the Alaska Pernmanent Fund
Corporation to determine the net inconme of the
earnings reserve account excluding the unrealized
gains or | osses

Section 8: (b) Defines the Percent of Mrket Value
payout as 5.25 percent of the average year-end narket
value of the Permanent Fund and Earnings Reserve
Account for the first five of the npbst recently
conpleted six fiscal years. The payout may not exceed
the year-end bal ance of the earnings reserve account
for the fiscal year just ended

Representative Gattis asked about Section 8, which defined
the POW payout up to 5.25 percent. She wondered if it was
just 5.25 percent instead of up to 5.25 percent.

M. Teal responded that it was a nore technical issue and
was the sane issue that Representative Gara wanted to

address. He explained that as oil prices increased the
payout from the earnings reserve account to the General
Fund would fall. He expounded the payout would begin to

fall at about $75 [per barrel]. By the tine oil prices
reached $105, the payout from the reserve account would be
zero. In that scenario, the rate should not be set at 5.25
percent because it would conflict with the revenue limt,
whi ch reduced the payout as oil prices rose.

3:33: 50 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Representative Gattis confirned that the |anguage "up to"
was correct.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked where the words "up to" occurred
in the |egislation. He read from the sectional analysis:
"Defines the Percent of Mirket Value payout as 5.25
percent."” He noted it did not include the words "up to." He
added that Section 8 on page 4 of the legislation did not
i ncl ude the | anguage either.

3:35: 07 PM
AT EASE

3:36: 20 PM
RECONVENED

Ms. Pierson answered that the "may appropriate” section
under discussion could be found in Section 10, subsection
(e) of the bill. She read fromthe section

Each year the legislature may appropriate from the
earni ngs reserve account to the general fund an anount
that does not exceed the anount available for
di stribution under AS 37.13.140(b) and (c).

Representative Gara surm sed the anount was not really 5.2
percent. He asked for verification it was 5.25 percent of
the last five years, which translated into something I|ike
4.8 percent of the current bal ance.

M. Teal spoke to the long six-year |ookback related to the
provision. He stated in theory the balance of the Permanent
Fund woul d be increasing each year. He stated that | ooking
back six years gave a payout that was approximately equal
to the balance of about three years back. The effective
payout was 5 percent of a three-year-old balance, which
anounted to less than 5 percent (if taken as a percent of
the current bal ance).

Representative (Gara asked for an estimate of t he
percentage. He had previously heard 4.8 percent. M. Tea
answered the nunber was correct.

Ms. Pierson continued to read the sectional analysis,
begi nning with Section 8, subsection (c):

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Section 8: (c) Reserves 20 percent of the POW payout
for dividends. The renmaining 80 percent of the payout
is subject to a dollar for dollar reduction as oil and
gas revenue rises above $1.2 billion.

1. Ol and gas Unrestricted GCeneral Fund revenue
excluding the amount to be paid as 20 percent of
the prior year royalties to the dividend

2. $1, 200,000 revenue limt

Section 9: Deals wth distribution of the noney
awarded in the Anerada Hess case

3:39:15 PM

Ms. Pierson continued to read fromthe sectional analysis:

Section 10: AS 37.13.145 is the Disposition of Incone
of the Permanent Fund statute

a) Unchanged - Establishes the ERA and identifies
the ERA as hol ding earnings of the Pernmanent Fund
and ERA

b) Repealed in this bill — dividends based on
statutory net incone

c) Repealed in this bill — inflation proofing

d) Repealed in this bill - segregation of Anerada
Hess

e) Added in this section — each year the |legislature
may appropriate to the General Fund the anount
available for distribution from the Earnings
Reserve Account under the POW in Sec. 10 (b) and
the limt calculation in AS 37.13.140(b) & (c)

f) Inflation proofing nmechani sm (when the bal ance of
the ERA reaches 4x the maxi mum anount avail able
for distribution

Section 11: Appropriations to the dividend fund
Di vidends are conprised of 20 percent of the 5.25
percent POW outlined in Sec. 4(b), and 20 percent of
prior year royalties, excludes those dedicated to the
Permanent Fund or School Fund (25.5 percent are
dedi cat ed)

Appropriation of revenue. I|If the anmount available for
appropriation in the preceding fiscal year is greater

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



than the anount appropriated, the |legislature nmay
appropriate the excess as foll ows:

(1) 50 percent to the Permanent Fund

(2) 50 percent to the CBR

Section 12: Conf or m ng | anguage relating to
pr ocur enent

Section 13: Mental Health Trust Fund and Amerada Hess
nmonies my not be included in the conputation of
i ncone available for distribution under the POW

Section 14: Transfer of noney to the D vidend Fund
requi res an appropriation

Section 15: The anpbunt of each Pernmanent Fund Di vi dend
for fiscal years 2017, 2018, and 2019 shall be $1, 000

Section 16: Conforns to Sec. 12, which noves noney to
the Dividend Fund by appropriation

Section 17: Once the noney is in the Dividend Fund,
t he Departnent of Revenue shall annually pay dividends
wi t hout further appropriation

Section  18: Repeal s | anguage relating to the
subaccount of the Constitutional Budget Reserve, the
f or mer di vi dend cal cul ati on, inflation proofing

cal cul ati on

Section 19: Repeals Sec. 15 - $1,000 dividend for
three years

Section 20: Transition Language: The Conm ssioner of
Revenue and the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation may
adopt regul ati ons, policies and pr ocedur es to
i mpl enent this Act

Section 21: Retroactivity clause

Section 22: Effective date for sections 2, 3, 12, 20
and 21, imediate

Section 23: Effective Date, July 1, 2016

3:42:39 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Representative Gara remarked that the state would not get
any additional revenue (revenue would be flat) up to $110
per barrel of oil (or so). He noted it started at $1.2
billion in oil revenue; he wondered when it ended.

M. Teal stated Representative Gara was speaki ng about the
payout limt. He relayed his preference to wait to address
the issue in order to avoid confusion

Representative WIlson referred to Section 11 that would
enable the legislature to appropriate 50 percent of
[ excess] revenue to the Permanent Fund and 50 percent to
the CBR She wondered why the noney would not be added to
t he Permanent Fund D vi dend i nstead.

M. Teal replied that it had been a proposal that had been
made by others. He could not provide detail on why, but it
was part of the nodeling package. He suggested waiting to
discuss the issue wuntil he reached the topic in his
upcom ng presentation

Representative WIlson referred to Section 15 that would set
the dividend to $1,000 for FY 17 through FY 19. She asked
if the nodeling indicated revenue the bill would bring in
if the $1,000 cap was not i ncl uded.

M. Teal replied in the negative. He stated the anmount was
roughly $900 if the $1,000 cap was not i ncl uded.

Representative WIson asked if the amunt would be
approximately $900 for all three years or if it would
decline over the three-year period. M. Teal answered the
anount would increase. He explained the nodel showed a
fairly steady line at $1,000 dividends. Wth no cap the
dividend started at about $900 and by FY 19 it would reach
$1, 000.

Representative GQuttenberg referred to Section 4 [page 3 of
the legislation] where managenent of the CBR would be
transferred from the Departnment of Revenue (DOR) to the
Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation (APFC) "in the manner set
out for the managenent and investnent of the assets of the
Al aska pernmanent fund under AS 37.13.120." He believed the
goal was to manage at a higher rate of return. He asked if
the |anguage covered the transfer of responsibility and
managenent. He wondered if including the |anguage in the
bill was all it took to make the change.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



M. Teal replied there were two sections relating to the
topic. The first was Section 4 that specified APFC woul d
manage the CBR He explained it was already in statute that
APFC may manage the CBR The second, nore inportant
conponent, was the transition |anguage in Section 20 of the
bill. He detailed there were currently sonme investnent
l[imtations on the CBR account that kicked in when the
funds may be used in the next five years. He explained that
those limtations were being repealed. He expounded that
t hose provisions currently held down the return on the CBR
The theory was that by having the CBR managed by APFC, the
investnment limtations would be elimnated, which would
impact the returns. The CBR had liquidity requirenents
because that state may be, or probably would be, draw ng
fromthe CBR to fill deficits. He noted that no matter who
managed the account, if it was managed on its own, it would
have to be very liquid; however, by nerging the CBR wth
APFC, which required significant |liquidity, liquid and
illiquid investnents would be transferred between the CBR
and the Permanent Fund. He explained that the Pernmanent
Fund was nuch larger than the CBR and the Permanent Fund
should be able to nanage the liquidity, which would allow a
hi gher investnment return. He cautioned that the change
could perhaps result in a |lower investnment return on the
Per manent Fund because it may require sonme adjustnment to
the asset allocation. He added that APFC had testified it
did not believe there would be a significant inpact.

3:49: 21 PM

Co- Chai r Thonmpson relayed that Angel a  Rodel |, APFC
executive director, was present and had testified that she
did not have any problemw th liquidity necessities.

Representative Quttenberg remarked that Section 4 had been
elimnated fromprior bill version I. He wondered about the
result of an imediate effective date and the renoval of
the July 2017 effective date.

M. Teal relayed the effective date had been changed to one
year out because the DOR conmi ssioner had testified he
wanted tine to review and consider the issue. He explained
that the comm ssioner had subsequently testified to the
Senate Finance Commttee that transferring the managenent
to APFC was no l|longer a substantial concern and that it

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



made financial sense. Gven the concern had abated, the
decision had been nade to nmke the transfer immediate at
the beginning of 2017 instead of waiting one year. He
stated it would possibly cause sone transition problens,
but he did not believe anyone expected it to be a one-day
transfer. He believed there were details that needed to be
wor ked out, which would be up to the conm ssioner and APFC.

Representative Minoz stated that the FY 17 budget was
funded with a $3.2 billion draw from the CBR She asked
what the actual draw would be if the bill passed. She
wondered if extra CBR funds would remain in the CBR or be
deposited into the General Fund.

M. Teal answered that the current draw wthout the
| egi slation was approximately $3.2 billion. Wth the bill,
there was a transfer of roughly $2.4 billion from the
Per manent Fund earni ngs reserve account to the General Fund
($700 mllion of the anmpbunt would pay the PFD from the
General Fund). The net transfer should be about $1.6
billion. He explained the bill would cut the CBR draw
roughly in half to $1.6 billion. He detailed precisely how
much would cone from the CBR versus the earnings reserve
account was not known; it depended on what happened wth
appropriation bills including supplenental bills in the
foll owing year. The CBR draw could be cut in half, but that
did not nean it woul d be.

Representative Minoz asked if the ampunt not necessary to
fund the budget remain in the CBR or go into the General
Fund.

M. Teal responded that the CBR draw approved in the
operating budget was the anmobunt necessary to Dbal ance
expenditures and appropriations. He furthered if there was
noney coming in as revenue from the earnings reserve
account, the amount necessary to bal ance would drop so only
$1.6 billion would be drawn. The remaining $1.6 billion
woul d stay in the CBR

3:53:18 PM

Representative Minoz asked for verification the renaining
money in the CBR would be nmanaged by APFC [under the
legislation]. M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Representative Gara spoke to the idea that the revenue
could not exceed the amount appropriated in the prior
fiscal year. He nentioned inflation issues. He spoke to the
FY 17 budget that was "cobbled together" with sone FY 16
and sonme FY 17 noney. He stated expenditures for the
upcom ng year were roughly $3.8 billion or approximtely
$500 million nore than was appropriated out of the FY 17
funds. He noted about $500 million had been spent out of FY
16 [for FY 17]. He asked if the cap would reflect what was
identified as FY 17 spending; therefore, it would be $500
mllion short of FY 17 expenditures.

M. Teal answered that Representative Gara was |ooking at
the savings rule [on slide 5]. He explained it was the | ast
page of the presentation. He preferred to address the
slides in order for clarity.

3:55:53 PM

M. Teal turned to slide 1: "LFD Fiscal Model,"” which
reflected the status quo. He relayed the scenario was not
wor kable. He pointed to an upper left chart titled "UGF
Revenue/ Budget ," which showed expenditures of roughly $5
billion in the out-years. The lower Ileft chart titled
"Budget Reserves" indicated there would be no CBR, earnings
reserve account, or any noney renmmining to support the
expenditure level. He pointed to the upper left chart and
detailed that the blue bar represented oil revenue, the
orange bar represented a draw from the CBR (which stopped
in FY 18 when the CBR was out of noney), and the red
represented drawing from the earnings reserve account
(beginning in FY 19). The earnings reserve account would be
enptied by FY 22 and the state would be out of noney. The
chart assuned the state was paying dividends of $2,000
annually. He explained that the scenario was highly
i nprobable; the state did not have noney to pay dividends
when the budget gap was so pronounced and there were no
reserves to fill it.

Representative WIson referred to the black line on the
upper left chart on slide 1. She wondered why the chart did
not show decreasing the budget. She asked if it was because
t he budget had continued to grow in the past few years.

M. Teal responded that the black line going fromFY 16 to

FY 17 depicted sone nassive budget reductions; there had
been $1 billion-plus in budget reductions in the past

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



coupl e of years. Some argued there was no way to have a no-

grow h budget - inflation alone would cause the budget to
increase. He stated "do we say it can't go both up and down
- we're going to just hold it constant.” He furthered that

exactly where the line went was up to the l|legislature; the
nmodel nerely held it constant.

Representative WIlson referred to the decrease shown on the
chart and surmsed it was primarily related to the capita
budget. She believed very little was related to everyday
oper at i ons.

M. Teal answered that the FY 16 to FY 17 change in day-to-
day agency operations dropped $216 mllion. He underscored
there had been a real reduction in agency operations. The
capital budget was down about $33 mllion and could
probably not be reduced nmuch nore. The reduction shown was
roughly $250 mllion and was not related to retirenment or
tax credits. He tried to filter those two conponents out of
presentati ons because LFD did not know what the |egislature
woul d be doing with tax credits and the retirenent savings
had al ready been accounted for in the FY 17 budget.

4:00:18 PM

Representative WIlson remarked that the spring forecast was
one of the |lowest forecasts in sone tinme. She added that
[the price of] oil was now known to be substantially
different. She asked if M. Teal would denonstrate what the
slide would |ook Iike when accounting for the current oil
prices.

M. Teal stated that he did but it would require an Excel
version of his chart, which he did not have on hand. He
offered to show the nodel itself, but noted it did not have
much to do with the bill. He explained the current bill
reacted to prices just as the status quo would react to a
different set of oil prices.

Representative W/ son disagreed. She reasoned the bill was
before the commttee because of the current oil prices. She
stated that having a real look at the current oil prices
could give a conpletely different scenario related to
whet her the bill was necessary in the current or follow ng
year (with a rebound in oil prices).

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Vice-Chair Saddler asked if the proper title for the slide
was "status quo."™ M. Teal agreed [note: slide 1 was
actually titled "LFD Fi scal Model "].

4:02:19 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddler pointed to a chart in the upper right of
the slide titled "Dividend Check." He asked if the chart
i ndi cated the dividend would remain at about $2,000 under
t he status quo.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to predictions that the
di vidend would go away in two or three years if the status
quo continued. He asked M. Teal to help reconcile the
predictions with the charts on slide 1.

M. Teal reiterated his testinony that the status quo was
not a valid scenario due to the white space in the upper
| eft graph or the zero balance in the lower left graph. He
expl ained the graph [on the upper right] showed continued
paynent of dividends because they were sinply dividend
cal cul ations. The charts on the left showed there was no
noney to pay the dividends. A calculation versus a paynent
- two different things. He did not believe the status quo
scenario was worth spending nuch tine looking at; it sinply
did not work. To address Representative WIson's concerns
he believed it was necessary to turn to the next slide,
whi ch indi cated what woul d occur under the nodel.

Co- Chair Neuman renmarked that LFD generally |ooked at the
budget based on the status quo of the present tine period
because LFD could not predict what would happen in the
future (if the price of oil was going to go up or down). He
asked if his statenent was correct.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

Representative Gara believed it was clear the presentation
used the spring revenue price forecast and not the status
quo price. He referred to the chart on the bottom |eft of
slide 1 titled "Budget Reserves." He referred to the orange
portion of the bars pertaining to the CBR bal ance. He asked
for wverification the anount represented the renaining
anount at the end of the end of the next fiscal year to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



spend in FY 18. He surmsed it was not until FY 18 that the
earni ngs reserve woul d be inpact ed.

4:04:32 PM

M. Teal agreed. He detailed the balance of the CBR would
be sonmewhere between $3 billion and $4 billion, which
assumed a $600 nillion settlenent coming in. Wthout that
[ settl enent noney] the amobunt would be closer to $3 billion
and the draw woul d perhaps not be sufficient for FY 18. The
graph showed that the CBR bal ance cane close to zero at the
end of FY 18.

Representative Gara nentioned the $600 mllion settlenent
that would go to the CBR He surm sed that even though the
chart showed the CBR funds would essentially disappear in
Fy 18, if the settlenent noney cane in there would be
enough CBR noney to fund the FY 18 budget w thout i npacting
t he earni ngs reserve account.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler requested to hear the nane of the next
slide when it was addressed.

M. Teal relayed that material on slide 2 titled "LFD
Fi scal Mddel" assuned the passage of the bill. He pointed
to the upper left graph titled "UG- Revenue/Budget" and
expl ai ned the orange segnents of the bars indicated there
was still a deficit [orange represented CBR draw. He
pointed to reserve balances and deficit in a table on the
|l ower left. He explained that even with the |egislation the
FY 17 deficit was projected to be $1.5 billion to $1.6

billion. He stated that in response to a question by
Representative WIson about whether the bill would fix the
probl em and what would happen if oil prices increased. He
explained that on its own, the bill did not solve the
problem the state would still have deficits of $1.5
billion early on, which would decline to $700 mllion to
$800 mllion in the out years. He detailed that the CBR
would still be fully depleted by 2023 when it would be

necessary to begin drawing from the earnings reserve
account. The red portion of the bars in the upper |left
chart on slide 2 represented the earnings reserve draw. He
specified that the noney comng from the earnings reserve
account was in excess of what the rules allowed. The green
bar represented the POW payout.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



4:07:43 PM

Representative WIlson remarked that unless state governnent
was reduced, the nodel outlined on slide 2 would not work.
She underscored that unless governnent spending was under
control, the bill or any other option would not solve the
deficit. She reasoned that based on the state's popul ation
it was not possible to tax its way out of maintaining
government at its current size. She enphasized she did not
believe the bill would solve the problem She opined that
the state needed to get smarter in the way it spent its
noney. She spoke to the goal of ensuring the earnings
reserve remained strong (without knowing what other
revenues nmay cone in and how industries such as mning and
oil may increase) and questioned whether it would be
possible to pay $1,200 per Alaskan to get through the
budget for the current year instead of inplenenting the
bill and changing the entire structure.

4:09:15 PM

M. Teal replied the question was difficult because it was
a policy question. He believed Governor Bill Walker had
been clear in stating his policy that the admnistration
was | ooking at the revenue forecast as a given and if nore
noney cane in, great. He specified there were three ways to
address the problem one was to reduce expenditures. He
believed there was no question the governor had nmade
reductions and the |egislature had made further cuts (and
woul d probably continue to put pressure on expenditures).
The second option was to increase revenue - the governor
had offered legislation towards that goal. The third and
nost inpactful was the Permanent Fund Protection Act
[offered by the governor]. He explained the tax bills
conbi ned would produce potentially $300 mllion to $400
mllion. The bill before the coommittee would close the gap
by $1.6 billion and nore in later years as the Pernmanent
Fund grew and the payout grew. The bill was by far the
| argest tool. He underscored that absent the bill, nuch
| arger reductions or revenue increases would be necessary
in order to achieve the same result. He could not speak for
t he governor, but he guessed the reason for introducing the
bill was that it was the nost powerful and |east harnful
t ool avail abl e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Representative W/ son disagreed. She believed the bill was
very harnful. She stated "the governor was going to cut 16
percent, which would have helped as well." She enphasized
that the bill or a simlar option would reduce the
di vidend. She detailed that noney went into the earnings
reserve from the corpus of the Permanent Fund, at which
point the l|egislature determ ned how much to put into the
CGeneral Fund to pay out a dividend. She stated that any of
the anounts could be reduced if governnment could not be
reduced that quickly. Alternatively, she believed the
governor could redline the anmount in half and it would
still acconplish the sane result as the bill. She asked for
t he accuracy of her statenents.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki remarked that nmany people | ooked at
the graph on the right side of slide 2 related to what the
di vidend check could have been versus the proposal (shown
in purple). He remarked that it was necessary to |ook at
both sides. He requested a nodel showing a dividend at
$1, 000, $1,200, $1,400, $1,600, $1,800, and $2,000. He
believed it would be helpful to get an idea of what the
graph on the left would I ook Iike over tine.

4:12: 50 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to the header "Permanent Fund
Pl ans" in the center of the chart. He noted that underneath
the header there was a columm showing "Governor" and a
colum showing "n." The row below those itens included
"$3,300." He asked if the anmount was $3.3 nillion or
$3, 300.

M. Teal replied that the "n" by the governor's plan
i ndicated the governor's plan was not being nodeled in the
scenario on slide 2. The $3,300 was the anmount of the
sust ai nabl e draw suggested by the governor. He noted the
amount could be crossed off because it was irrelevant to
slide 2. He referred to a separate row under the Pernmanent
Fund Pl ans header, which indicated a custom plan (HB 245)
was bei ng nodel ed.

Vice-Chair Saddler clarified that he considered the bill

before the commttee as the governor's plan. He pointed to
the chart in the upper right of slide 2 titled "Dividend

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



Check." He asked if the three bars in red, purple, and
yel |l ow were cal cul ati ons or actual figures.

M. Teal relayed that the red line showed the dividend
under current law, which was a calculation. He indicated
that as shown on slide 1, it was a calculation that would
not be a valid scenario. He stated the dividend would fal
to zero when there was no noney remaining (indicated by
white space on the graphs). The nore appropriate conparison
was that the dividend would remain until FY 20 or FY 21 and
woul d subsequently drop to zero. The alternatives were a
$2,000 for approximately four years and no dividend after
that tinme versus a $1,000 dividend, which would continue
into the future.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked for verification the purple line
at $1,000 represented what woul d  occur under t he
| egislation. M. Teal answered in the affirmative.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted the bill also included a three-year
revi ew.
4:15: 42 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if the yellow line represented
what the dividend woul d be under a separate bill [HB 224].

M. Teal answered that the only thing valid in the nodeling
on slide 2 was what would occur under HB 245. O her
scenari os were shown that were essentially zeroed out. He
suggested focusing on the $1,000 line [in purple], which
represented what the bill expected to pay in dividends.

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to the upper left chart titled
"UGF Revenue/Budget" on slide 2. He pointed to the green
portion of the bars which represented the POW payout. He
then referred to the lower |left chart titled "Budget
Reserves” and observed the green portion of the bars
represented the earnings reserve account. He asked for
verification it was mnerely a coincidence that both itens
were shown in green. He believed there was no correlation
bet ween t he two.

M. Teal answered it was not coincidental. He detailed the
orange bars on the upper chart represented the draw from
the CBR, whereas the orange bars on the |lower chart
represented the CBR balance. The green bars on the upper

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



chart represented the draw with a payout from the earnings
reserve account, whereas, the green bars on the |ower chart
represented the earnings reserve bal ance.

Representative Gara referred to the footnote at the bottom
of slides 1 and 2, which indicated the nodeling assuned a

$250 mllion annual appropriation for oil and gas tax
credits. He believed the state owed roughly $800 nillion in
the current year and he did not know what a new bill that

cane out of conference commttee would do, which he noted
was | ess than the anount passed by the House.

Co-Chair Neuman asked that comments were Kkept to the
subject of the bill.

Representative Gara countered that every portion of his
guestion was relevant to the current conversation.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked to keep questions to the scenario
on slide 2. He added the commttee would have the ability
to ask additional questions the follow ng week.

4:18:12 PM

Representative Gara pointed to the relevant footnote on
slides 1 and 2 that assuned a $250 nillion annua
appropriation for oil and gas tax credits. He remarked that
$800 million was owed [for oil and gas tax credits] in the
current year and it was not yet known what had cone out of
a conference commttee [on the subject] that day. He
reasoned it seenmed the noney would disappear faster
assuming the anmount owed. He noted the $250 nillion
assunpti on was not accurate for the current year.

M. Teal stated it was the purpose of the footnote. He
expl ained that LFD had no idea what the |egislature would
pay in tax credits. The armount paid would be up to

individual legislatures in the future. The LFD nodel
recogni zed that the anticipated credits to be earned was
approximately $2 billion (including existing credits owed),
which was an average of $250 million per year. Under the
bill it started as an expected payout of $600 mllion to
$700 mllion and fell to less than $200 mllion in the

future. He reiterated that LFD had no idea what the actua
scenario would be. The nodel assuned that sonetine during
the period credits would be in the $2 billion range, the
nodel spread them evenly over tinme. He stated if a bigger

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



credit paynent was paid early on and paynents faded away
over tine, the early expenditures would be higher and
reserves would be depleted faster. However, at the end of
2025 the sanme result would occur regardl ess of whether the
| egislature paid $250 million per year or $1 billion in the
current year and a small anopunt for the remainder. He
explained LFD had chosen to nmke the easiest assunption
about credits, which neant spreading the cost evenly over
tine.

Representative Gara referred to slide 2 and believed it
related to the current bill proposal. He asked if the slide
assunmed all state revenues as they existed at present
(i ncluding small taxes).

M. Teal replied that it did not assume any new tax
revenue, but existing taxes were included.

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to Representative Gara's prior
statenent that the state would owe $800 million in oil tax
credits. He asked if the $800 nmillion included or did not
include $200 mllion that had been vetoed by the governor
fromthe FY 16 budget.

Co-Chair Thonpson asked how the question applied to the
bill.

Vice-Chair Saddler remarked that he had heard the nunber
$800 million and wanted to nmake sure he understood what it
nmeant .

Co- Chair Neuman thought the commttee was getting way off
t opi c.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked the comittee to stick to the
present ati on.

Representative WIson asked how the slide addressed the

$1.2 billion spending limt in the bill. She provided a
scenario where $1.2 billion was used, but $1.6 billion was
brought in.
4:22:19 PM

M. Teal skipped slide 3 and continued on slide 4 titled
"PFPA Payout/Revenue Limt." The slide included a chart
showi ng UGF revenue without the payout limt and a chart

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



showing UGF revenue with the payout limt. The breakeven
point on the left chart (no payout limt) was about $85 per
barrel. He detailed that the red portion of the bars
represented nonvol atile revenue (i.e. non-oil revenue), the
green portion represented the POW payout, and the blue
portion represented oil revenue (i.e. volatile revenue). He
added the chart wused an expenditure |ine of about $5
billion [showmn as a solid black line] including dividends;
the chart also depicted an expenditure |ine excluding
di vidends [shown as a dotted black line]. He stated the
lines <crossed at about $85. The graph on the right
reflected a payout limt. The nunbers were the sane, but at
oil prices of about $75 per barrel the green |ine [POW
after payout |imt] began to fade away. He detailed it
faded dollar-for-dollar for every bit of oil revenue above
$1.2 billion. Under the scenario the CBR draw (shown in
orange) continued out farther and the breakeven price of
oi | required to balance the budget increased to
approxi mately $105. He explained the green bar (POW) woul d
not drop all the way to zero; the small remaining portion
reflected the dividend payout from the earnings reserve
account. He continued that the l|ine clinbed slowy as
revenue clinbed and then began to flatten out; at the
breakeven point (about where the POW payout went to zero)
there would be a surplus. He specified the surplus occurred
above about $105.

4:25:33 PM

He turned to slide 5: "Savings Rule." The rule indicated
that when the state had noney exceedi ng what was needed for

expenditures, it would be saved - 50 percent would be
deposited into the CBR and 50 percent into the Pernmnent
Fund principal. The line was not conpletely flat when
| ooking at the sum of the red [nonvolatile revenue], green
[POW after payout Ilimt], and blue [total volatile
revenue] bars - the revenue clinbed slowy and flattened

out, albeit not conpletely. Once the dollar-for-dollar |oss
of the POW payout was passed, revenue began to accel erate
fairly rapidly. He hoped the slides answered nunerous
qguestions including ones related to the $1.2 billion (the
dol | ar-for-doll ar tradeoff), where the price points
occurred, where the noney started to fade, and what the
surplus could be used for when it came back. The slides did
not address what would happen when surplus revenue
occurred. He explained that as the bill was drafted it
asked whether revenue had exceeded expenditures in the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



previous year. He relayed it was a difficult question to
answer until the year closed. He inmagined there would be an
appropriation much like wth current CBR | anguage
specifying that in the event revenue exceeded expenditures
it was distributed "this way." He explained what the
amounts would be would not be known until six or so nonths
after a year had cl osed.

Representative Gara returned to his previous questions. His
understanding was that there was a conbined draw from
savings of FY 16 and FY 17 noney to be spent in FY 17. He
stated that the next year's revenue could not exceed the
prior year's appropriations. He referred to the current
budget as an exanple and detailed that roughly $500 mllion
of FY 16 noney had been used that would be spent in FY 17.
He asked if under the forrmula the $500 million would not be
counted. Alternatively, he asked if the budget would have
to be reduced by $500 nmillion to fit what had been
wi t hdrawn as FY 17 revenue.

M. Teal explained that the bill had a loop hole that
al l owed FY 23 expenditures to be used in the FY 24 budget
process (supplenental appropriations). Under a scenario
where the legislature was working on the FY 24 budget
nearing the end of FY 23 and it knew there was $1 billion
| eft over, there could be supplenental appropriations to
spend sone of the renmaining noney, which would take it away
from the savings portion. The only way to prevent the
situation was to insert a spending limt in the state
constitution, which would prevent the noney from being
spent. Oherwise, the legislature could spend avail able
funds in the suppl enental budget process.

4:30: 05 PM

Representative Gara used the current year as an exanple and
i ncluded the assunption the bill was adopted. He believed
FY 17 spending would utilize FY 16 (approxinmately $500
mllion) and FY 17 appropriations. Wen considering the
al l owabl e revenue for expenditure in the next vyear, he
wondered if the legislature would have to cut the $500
mllion that was used from FY 16 appropriations.

Co- Chair Thonpson interjected they were |ooking to the next
year's budget already. He stated if the legislature was
going to reduce the next year's budget nore than it reduced
the budget for the current year, it would probably eat up

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



some of the anmount. He reasoned they did not currently know
where they were headed "with any of this" at present. He
believed they were getting ahead of thenselves in the
present discussion. He understood where Representative Gara
was comng from but he wondered how the question related
to the bill currently before the commttee.

Representative Gara stated he was trying to understand the
formula for what revenue the legislature was allowed to use
based on how nuch it had appropriated in the prior year. He
asked if the anmount of revenue the state would be allowed
to use in the next vyear was based on the FY 17
appropriations alone or also included the $500 million in
FY 16 appropriations (assum ng the passage of the bill).

M . Teal replied that it wwuld only cover FY 17
appropriations. He detailed it was not really a matter of
the appropriations that occurred in the normal budget
process (those appropriations would be supplenental budget
items). The legislature was able to pass the $500 mllion
suppl emrental budgets because the |anguage in the previous
year's budget authorized the legislature to spend up to
$500 mllion nore in supplenental expenditures with noney
fromthe CBR He furthered that if the CBR | anguage had a
lower |imt, the legislature could spend less in the
suppl emrental process. He believed it was inportant to note
that CBR draws would be necessary until oil prices reached
the $100 per barrel range. He continued there was still a
deficit, which could be filled by expenditure cuts, tax
i ncreases, or by drawing fromthe CBR The chart on slide 5
showed a CBR draw. He relayed that the |egislature could
[imt supplenental spending if it wanted to.

M. Teal provided a scenario where oil reached $115 per
barrel, which resulted in a surplus for the FY 18 budget
process. He enphasized that the noney wuld not be
avai lable for expenditure in FY 17 - it would not be
avai lable until FY 18. He explained that the |egislature
may be able to spend the noney in the FY 19 budget process
as a supplenental FY 18 expenditure. He detailed it would
depend on whether a CBR draw was required and on what the
| egislature did. He enphasized a |legislature could not bind
future legislatures. The rule could be witten in a tougher

way, much |ike the current CBR |anguage that specified
appropriations for the prior year that were made in the
pri or cal endar year. In other wor ds, suppl enment al

appropriations were specifically excluded. However, if that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 24 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



change was made, the rule would be so restrictive that in
the event of a bad wldfire year, there would be no
flexibility to appropriate noney to fight the fires. If the
bill did not include sone flexibility, the |egislature
would find itself forced to break the rules in the future
The point was to get a set of rules that were good
gui delines, but that they were not so strict that the
| egislature would be forced to break them He reasoned that
once rules were broken, there was a tendency to ignore
them He concluded that the wheels were not as tight as
sonme people may want themto be.

4:35:26 PM

Representative Gara asked for verification that if the bill
| anguage was followed in determning how nuch the
| egi sl ature could appropriate the followng year, it was
not allowed to count the $500 mllion that was nade as an
FY 16 appropriation.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

Representative Gara asked for verification the funding
would be short the $500 million. M. Teal agreed, but
rem nded the committee that the scenario would not cone
into play unless oil prices reached $110 per barrel.

Co- Chair Neuman remarked that the debt would still be owed.
He detailed there were approximately $430 mllion to $500
mllion in credits due the current year. He remarked that
t he supplenmental for FY 16 was $70 million. He reasoned the

debt was still incurred and could not nerely be swept under
the rug. He added the legislature had chosen to pay off the
debt with available noney. He reiterated the debt still had

to be accounted for in future years.

4:37:02 PM

M. Teal replied that it was inportant to realize the $430
mllion of the prior year's noney (FY 16) was used to pay a
debt. He explained if the noney had been appropriated as FY
17 money, there would have been a smaller FY 16 expenditure
and a larger FY 17 expenditure. He underscored that at the
end of FY 17 the result would be exactly the sane; it nmade
no difference whether they were FY 16 or Fy 17
expenditures. He remnded the conmmttee that whenever it

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



paid the $430 million, it was $430 mllion less liability
that the state would owe at sone point in the future.

Representati ve W | son st at ed her under st andi ng t he
| egislature was putting guidelines in place that were
merely guidelines in terns of the savings conponent. She
referred to taking noney away from the Permanent Fund
D vidend and asked how nmuch rel ated noney woul d be mandat ed
by the | egislation.

M. Teal answered that in theory the |egislature would want
to follow all of the guidelines including the 20 percent of
royalty that went to dividends. He explained that the
savings rule would kick in at prices above $110 per barre
and would put the savings towards the CBR or the Pernanent
Fund corpus. He remnded the conmttee that at high oi
prices royalties increased substantially (20 percent);
t herefore, dividends would increase. A portion of the high
oil prices would go straight into dividends.

4:39:19 PM

Representative WIlson clarified her question pertaining to
slide 5. She underscored that guidelines were very
different than statute that had to be followed in a
specific way. She surnmised the savings conponent of the
legislation was a gquideline that my or nmy not be
fol |l oned, whereas, how the dividend would be paid at $1, 000
and how the legislature would put noney into the Genera
Fund woul d be mandated as state | aw.

M. Teal stressed that the conponents would all be the sane
and would all be in state |law. The difference was that none
of the statutes were nmandated. The statute showed how
di vi dends wer e cal cul at ed and specified t hat t he
| egislature may not appropriate nore than 5.25 percent;
however, the |egislature could appropriate 10 percent if it
chose to. He explained the situation nerely equated to
breaking the rule. The point of the rules was to follow
them because doing so put the state on a path to a
sust ai nabl e budget. Alternatively, if the |egislature chose
to break the rules it would veer fromthat path

Representative WIson remarked that she thought statutes

were laws not nmerely suggestions. She pointed to slide 5
and asked what price of oil the current budget was based

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



on. She rephrased her question and asked what oil price was
required for the current budget to be self-sustainable.

M. Teal referred to the [DOR] spring forecast, which was
roughly $45 per barrel. He explained at that price the CBR
draw would be slightly over $1 billion. He detailed the
orange segnments of the bars [representing budget deficit]
di sappeared at oil prices of around $105 per barrel; at
that point the conbination of non-oil revenue (in red),
di vidends, and oil revenue (in blue) created a surplus. He
continued that if oil prices reached $105 per barrel, the
savings rule would kick in. At prices bel ow $105 per barre

the guideline on slide 5 was irrelevant. He underscored
t hat the legislature could nake appropriations that
foll owed statute or it could appropriate as it saw fit. He
enphasi zed the |legislature was not required to follow any
of the specific rules; however, the hope was that it would
foll ow t hem

4:43:12 PM

Representative WIson did not understand the need to put
something in statute if all of the itenms were nerely rules
the legislature could chose to follow or disregard. She
clarified that if the current budget required oil prices of
$105 per barrel, the legislature would perpetually have to
hope for oil prices of that amount if it failed to decrease
t he budget.

Co- Chair Thonpson relayed the bill would be considered by
the coonmttee again the foll owm ng week.

Representative Pruitt explained that the I|egislature had
al ready funded the Permanent Fund Dividend in its recently
passed budget. He wondered if the bill passed whether the
governor would have to veto a portion of the budget rel ated
to the dividend.

M. Teal replied that it was not a sinple question because

if the bill passed it would have no acconpanying
appropriation bill. He specified t hat unl ess t he
| egi sl ature passed another appropriation bill making the
appropriations suggested in the bill, no noney would nove.

He furthered that Representative Pruitt was correct in
assum ng the operating budget passed by both houses funded
dividends in FY 17. \Whether the governor would veto all or
a portion of the appropriation, he did not know He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 27 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



el aborated that with HB 245 the conmittee had an option of
starting an appropriation bill and maki ng t he
appropriations required to conply wth the bill. He
detailed that if that route was taken, dividends would be
set at $1,000 under the legislation, but at $2,000 under
the operating budget. He did not see that as a likely
out cone and he anticipated the governor would veto all or a
portion of the dividends in the operating budget.

Representative Pruitt surmsed that if the bill did not
pass, but the governor still wanted to do essentially sone
of the same things, he would have the ability to line item
veto any ampunt of the nunber appropriated by the
| egi sl ature.

M. Teal responded that the governor could line-item veto
anything in the operating budget regardl ess of whether or
not HB 245 passed. He detailed that if the bill passed, it
would not require an acconpanying appropriation bil
because it could all be handled through the existing
appropri ations.

Representative Gara referred to the two graphs on slide 4.

He asked for verification that with a payout limt there
woul d be a deficit all the way up to oil prices of $100 per
barrel and wthout the payout I|imt the deficit would

di sappear at $80 per barrel.

M. Teal agreed and clarified that the nunmbers were roughly
$105 [with a payout Ilimt] and $85 [without a payout
limt].

HB 245 was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for further

consi der ati on.

Co- Chair Thonpson addressed the schedule for the follow ng
week. He recessed the neeting to a call of the chair [note:
t he neeting never reconvened].

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

4:47:06 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:47 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 06/06/16 3:17 P. M



